
 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

August 20, 2024 

7:00 p.m. 

 
Meetings are conducted in-person with the option of attending virtually. 

Meeting Location: 18421 Veterans Memorial Dr. E, Bonney Lake 98391 

 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

                                    https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81264741327 

 
Viewers may ask questions at the appropriate time via the chat option available within the application.  Statements and or 

questions may also be emailed to cbyerley@eastpiercefire.org. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 PM 

 

2. ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/WELCOME 

a) Roll Call/ Pledge of Allegiance  

b) Welcome the Public 

c) Honors and Recognition 

i) None 

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approve Minutes of the July 16th Regular Meeting ...................................................................... Pages 3-5 

b) Treasurer’s Report ......................................................................................................................... Pages 6-7 

c) Approve Finances ........................................................................................................................ Pages 8-14 

d) Financial Waiver 

i) Transport Account 132855695 in the amount of $145.80 ......................................................... Page 15 

e) Resolution 1057 – Quarterly EMS Write-Offs ................................................................................. Page 16 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS 

a) None 

 

6. VISITORS Open to Public Comments 

Any individual may request that the Board recognize them to give their comments on items not on the agenda.  

Please identify yourself and state your address for the record before commenting.  Comments/Questions 

should be submitted via chat feature on webinar or emailed to the District Secretary at 

cbyerley@eastpiercefire.org.  Please submit copies of any reports, statements, etc. to the District Secretary for 

the Board via email or mail.  The Board may not have the information at hand to address a subject or take 

action at this time. 

 

7. BOND-2018: 

a) Update - Herrera  ....................................................................................................................... Pages 17-23 

 

8. CHIEF’S REPORT 

a) Monthly Chiefs Report .............................................................................................................. Pages 24-25  

b) Deputy Chiefs Report ................................................................................................................ Pages 26-27 

c) Monthly Injury Report ...................................................................................................................... Page 28 

 

Agenda Packet Page 1 of 65

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81264741327
https://eastpiercefire.sharepoint.com/sites/EPFR/Shared%20Documents/-%20Administrative%20-/District%20Secretary/AGENDAS/2023%20Agendas/cbyerley@eastpiercefire.org


9. COMMISSIONER CONFERENCE/COMMITTEE REPORTS:

a) Planning Committee – Notes from 7/19 meeting ............................................................................. Page 29 

b) Finance Committee – ............................................................................................................................ None 

c) HR Committee – Notes from 8/5 meeting ........................................................................................ Page 30 

10. RESOLUTIONS:

a) Resolution 1058 – Transfer of Funds from Reserve to General– Hollon .................................. Pages 31-33 

b) Resolution 1059 – Surplus House on Station 112 Property – Parkinson .................................. Pages 34-35 

c) Resolution 1060 – EMS Surplus – Moore ................................................................................. Pages 36-38 

d) Resolution 1061 – Transfer of Funds from General to Capital– Hollon ................................... Pages 39-40 

11. NEW BUSINESS (Board Chair will allow for public comments via chat or email)

a) Project Manager Contract – Parkinson ...................................................................................... Pages 41-43 

b) Mechanic – Parkinson ...................................................................................................................... Page 44 

c) Heart Monitor Presentation – Moore ................................................................................................ Page 45 

d) Station 112 House Trade Agreement – Parkinson ..................................................................... Pages 46-65 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (Board Chair will allow for public comments via chat or email)

a) None

13. COMMISSIONER TRAINING/EVENT REQUESTS:

a) WFCA Annual Conference (Spokane 10/23-10/26) – Byerley ............................................................ None 

b) Snure Seminar (October 23rd 6:30-9:30pm) – Byerley......................................................................... None 

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Per RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a public employee.

15. COMMISSIONER ACTION/DISCUSSION:

a) None

16. ADJOURN

2024 EVENTS: 

• August 22nd  ........................................................................ PC Commissioner Meeting (SS911 and Zoom) 

• September 26th  ...................................................................... PC Commissioner Meeting (TBD and Zoom) 

• September 28th .................................................................................................... EPFR Annual Open House 

• October 24th  .......................................................................  NO PC MEETING – STATE CONFERENCE 

• November 21st  ........ PC Commissioner Meeting (3rd Thursday due to 4th Thursday being Thanksgiving) 

• December 5th  ......................................................  NO PC MEETING – ANNUAL AWARDS BANQUET 

Agenda Packet Page 2 of 65



 

 

July 16, 2024, Regular Meeting  Page 1 of 3 

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS OF 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

 

July 16, 2024 
 

A regular meeting of the Board of Fire Commissioners of East Pierce Fire & Rescue was held on July 16, 

2024, in-person at Headquarters (18421 Veterans Memorial Dr E, Bonney Lake) and via 

conference/video call through Zoom.  Notice and link to join meeting was posted for public access.  

Board Chair Jon Napier called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Present by roll call were Commissioners 

Ed Egan, Kevin Garling, Pat McElligott, Randy Kroum, Cynthia Wernet, and Justin Evans.  Chief Jon 

Parkinson, Deputy Chief Kevin Stabenfeldt, Deputy Chief Matt Gilbert, and District Secretary Corina 

Byerley were also present.   

 

Commissioners Excused: None 

Commissioners Unexcused: None 

 

AUDIENCE:  Assistant Chief Will Poe, Project Manager Phil Herrera, Mike McGinnis, Gilbert Family 

(x3). 

 

HONORS AND RECOGNITIONS: None 

 

OATH OF OFFICE: 

Chief Parkinson gave Deputy Chief Gilbert his Oath of Office.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:   

Commissioner Kroum moved to approve the agenda.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Egan 

and carried. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA:   

Commissioner Egan moved to approve the consent agenda (minutes from the June 18th Regular meeting; 

treasurer’s report; current expense vouchers 240704001-240704068 in the amount of $916,729.57; 

payroll vouchers 240705001-240705015 in the amount of $937,669.95; electronic payroll in the amount 

of $2,731,539.47; Capital expense vouchers 240703001 - 240703011 in the amount of $1,601,074.79; and 

special voucher 240702001 in the amount of $427,373.95).  Motion seconded by Commissioner Garling 

and carried. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER PRESENTATION:  None 

 

VISITOR COMMENTS: None 

 

BOND-2018:  

Project Manager:  Project Manager Phil Herrera gave an update on the Capital Facilities Plan included 

in packet.  

 

Station 111:  Admin paint continues.  There is a lot of different surfaces to paint.  Acoustic ceilings and 

sound insulation install underway.  Electrical and mechanical finishes underway.  Siding is complete.  

Finish grade sitework continues, curbs and sidewalks are underway.  Plaza concrete wall forms are 

getting close to complete, Concrete placement over the next two weeks.  Trim and millwork starting in 

admin this month. 

 

Agenda Packet Page 3 of 65



 

 

July 16, 2024, Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 3 

Station 112:  CUP is finally being scheduled for the public hearing.  Building permit reviews have been 

addressed and are awaiting approval.  The site drawings have been reviewed; final revisions are 

underway.  Final adjustments and review of bid documents are underway. Package is targeted to be out 

for bid by the end of July. 

 

Station 114:  Sheetrock continues.  PSE is working on rerouting the gas main for the utilities conflict in 

the right-of-way.  The water main reroute will proceed upon gas line completion.  Exterior CMU removal 

is finally scheduled to begin the week of July 22nd.      

 

Station 117:  Rough framing is complete for 90% of the building.  Roof covering is underway.  The 

contractor is shooting to have the building 80% dried in by the end of the month.  This general contractor 

is doing quality work and moving at a good pace.  They are a little ahead of schedule at this time.     

 

Station 118:  Final occupancy permit items are complete, Final is partially complete, working with the 

city to resolve minor documentation inconsistencies.  Fuel tank permit in process.  We are working with 

the contractor to replace landscape plants.   

 

CHIEF’S REPORT: 

Monthly Chiefs Report: Reviewed the Chief’s monthly report with the Board.  Included in agenda 

packet.  Chief Parkinson’s report included: Overview of 4th of July stats; Medic 1119 was placed in 

service on July 1st, the impact of the unit has been felt and is good so far; the organizational chart has 

been updated; sale of Windmill property is complete; the July 1st promotions of DC Gilbert and AC 

Westland; Annual updates with each city council continue; and results from the Employee Survey 

included many remarks from personnel regarding concerns with heart monitors, AC Moore will provide 

more information in the next couple months.   

 

Monthly Deputy Chiefs Report: Deputy Chief Stabenfeldt gave a brief overview of each division’s 

accomplishments for the month.  DC Stabenfeldt’s report included: Operations-status of four current 

recruit groups, Promotions included Lt. Malland and Lt. Dedge; Special teams (Tech Rescue) 

appointments included FF/PM Plancich and FF Nguyen; Logistics-L113 repair/maintenance complete, 

Station 122 repairs/maintenance complete, and the division welcomed AC Westland; EMS- 

implementation of EMS check sheets, scenes of violence training with DEM, 2nd quarter Paramedic 

Airway course complete, and Peer support training and resource list; Fire Prevention/Public Education-70 

Fire and Life Safety inspections, implementation of First Due Size Up (FDSU), DC Stabenfeldt extended 

a big thank you to PIO Dina Sutherland for her support of several significant incidents providing social 

media updates and making contact with the media.  

 

Monthly Injury Report: Update provided in agenda packet.   

 

COMMISSIONER CONFERENCE/COMMITTEE REPORTS: None 

 

RESOLUTIONS:  

Resolution 1055 – Transfer of Funds (Project Manager): Chief Parkinson presented to the Board 

Resolution 1055 requesting the transfer of funds in the amount of $75,962 from the Capital Fund to the 

General fund to cover the wages and expenditures of the project manager. Commissioner Kroum moved 

to approve Resolution 1055 to transfer funds from the Capital Fund to the General Fund in the amount of 

$75,962.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner McElligott and carried. 

 

Resolution 1056 – Surplus Vehicles and Misc. Equipment:  Assistant Chief Poe presented to the Board 

Resolution 1056 requesting the surplus of five vehicles (asset numbers 105, 106, 409, 423, and 425) 

miscellaneous logistics equipment as listed in Exhibit A.  Commissioner Garling moved to approve 

Resolution 1056, the surplus of vehicles and miscellaneous equipment and to dispose of, donate, sell, or 

recycle at the discretion of the Fire Chief.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner McElligott and 

carried. 

Agenda Packet Page 4 of 65



 

 

July 16, 2024, Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 3 

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

PC Fire Protection Services Interlocal:  Chief Parkinson presented to the Board a contract for fire 

protection services provided to Pierce County owned buildings, equipment, and property within the 

district.  This contract is reviewed and renewed annually based on adjustments to fees.  Fees are based on 

number of calls to such property.  Commissioner McElligott moved to adopt the interlocal agreement 

between East Pierce Fire & Rescue and Pierce County for fire protection services for County-owned 

buildings, equipment, and property within East Pierce’s district.  The motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Garling and carried. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None 

 

COMMISSIONER TRAINING/EVENT REQUESTS:   

WFCA Annual Conference: District Secretary Byerley provided information regarding the WFCA 

Annual Conference to be held in Spokane October 23-26.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  None 

 

COMMISSIONER ACTION/DISCUSSION:  None 

 

ADJOURN 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

 

 

_________________________________  _________________________________ 

District Secretary Corina Byerley   Chairman Jon Napier/Vice-Chair Ed Egan 

Agenda Packet Page 5 of 65



Current

Month

 Year to

Date 

 Budget 

Resolution 1034 

 Remaining

Amount 

 Remaining

Percent 

5 Months Remaining = 41.67%

General Fund (Current Expense)
Net Cash & Investments 12/31/2023 12,658,683$       Budgeted

Operating Revenues

Property Tax - Current 137,019         21,492,085         40,405,095         18,913,010         46.8%

Property Tax - Prior Year/Delinquent 18,925           329,627              -                          (329,627)             0.0%

Other Taxes 23                  21,008                18,500                (2,508)                 -13.6%

Regular EMS Transport 287,662         1,867,444           2,900,000           1,032,556           35.6%

GEMT Transport 268,084         1,792,159           2,112,000           319,841              15.1%

GEMT Reconciliation -                     -                          400,000              400,000              100.0%

Intergovernmental 5,222             151,280              201,375              50,095                24.9%

Tehaleh Mitigation -                     86,800                100,000              13,200                13.2%

Transfers in from Reserves/Capital 75,962           175,352              7,700,565           7,525,213           97.7%

Other Revenue 240,533         1,294,963           2,001,453           706,490              35.3%

Total Operating Revenues 1,033,430      27,210,717         55,838,988         28,628,271         51.3%

Reserved: Advance Travel & Petty Cash (Imprest Accounts) $15,100 Not Included

Operating Expenses 

Current

Month

 Year to

Date 

 Budget 

Resolution 1034 

 Remaining

Amount 

 Remaining

Percent 

Administration (Comm, Fire Chief, Deputy 

Chief, Finance, HR) 427,289         1,842,848           3,260,984 1,418,136           43.5%

Operations (Fire, Training, Volunteers) 3,063,622      19,290,814         33,360,160 14,069,346         42.2%

EMS 220,271         1,685,456           3,286,873 1,601,417           48.7%

Prevention (Fire Prevention, Pub Ed) 111,094         709,253              1,401,954 692,701              49.4%

Logistics (Logistics, Emerg. Mgmt, IT) 457,486         3,106,055           5,055,431 1,949,376           38.6%

Capital  (Project Manager) 25,783           201,134              201,677 543                     0.3%

Reserve Purchases (Equipt., EMS, Facility) 195,623         1,289,955           7,498,888 6,208,933           82.8%

Transfers Out -                     2,071,581           1,773,021 (298,560)             -16.8%

Total Operating Expenses 4,501,168      30,197,096         55,838,988 25,641,892         45.9%

Payroll Clearing Accruals 69,692           45,978                

Operating Expenses Net of Accruals 4,570,860      30,243,074         55,838,988
Ending Net Cash & Investments 9,626,326$         

Reserve Fund
Net Cash & Investments 12/31/2023 33,032,937$       Budgeted

Reserve Balances

Other 

Revenues
Transfer In Transfer Out

Balance as of 

07/31/24 (Short)/Over

General Reserve 4,522,799           71,814                    

Equipment Reserve 14,141,671         N/A

Facilities Reserve 1,207,412           407,412                  

Employee Compensation Reserve 959,151              159,151                  

Capital Facilities Phase 2 15,198,005         Balance

Sale of Tax Title Property

Investment Interest 164,720         

Current Month Total 164,720         -                          -                          

Year to Date Total 1,073,460$    2,071,581$         -$                        36,029,039$       

   

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE

July 2024

for August 20, 2024 Meeting

Agenda Packet Page 6 of 65



EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE

July 2024

for August 20, 2024 Meeting

Capital (Construction) Fund UTGO 

Bonds 2022
Current

Month

 Year to

Date 

 Budget 

Resolution 1034 

 Remaining

Amount 

 Remaining

Percent 

Net Cash & Investments 12/31/2023 42,618,324$       Budgeted

Revenues

Investment Interest 142,189         1,134,534           2,100,000           965,466              0.0%

Total Revenues 142,189         1,134,534           2,100,000           965,466              

Expenses

Capital Purchases -                     26,959                -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 111 1,410,384      5,860,946           -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 112 26,268           355,161              -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 114 252,964         3,042,969           -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 117 326,241         2,624,578           -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 118 12,593           222,104              -                          -                          0.0%

Capital Purchases-Station 124 -                     175,352              -                          -                          0.0%

Transfer Out - GF - Cap Fac Mgr 75,962           -                          201,677              201,677              0.0%

Total Expenses 2,104,411      12,308,069         201,677              -                          0.0%

Ending Net Cash and Investments 44,516,647$       

    ** Note: $1,000,000 of Ending Net Cash reserved for IRS for arbitrage true-up **

Agenda Packet Page 7 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 8 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 9 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 10 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 11 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 12 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 13 of 65



July 2024 Post-Meeting

Payroll Transactions Revised 

    trx# 3173 DRS/LEOFF II voided (326,253.62)$       

    trx# 3177 FIT TAXES voided (376,356.65)$       

    trx# 2986 Brockwell, Paul voided (9,187.00)$            

    trx# 3234 DRS/LEOFF II created 326,848.73$         

    trx# 3235 FIT TAXES created 376,785.26$         

    trx# 3267 Brockwell, Paul created 9,187.00$             

    trx# 3234 DRS/LEOFF II voided (326,848.73)$       

    trx# 3235 FIT TAXES voided (376,785.26)$       

    trx# 3180 Local 3520 - 1.50% voided (31,829.65)$          

    trx# 3172 Decision Point - Spectrum voided (104,189.76)$       

    trx# 3014 Doyle, Justin voided (15,318.44)$          

    trx# 2972 Ah Quin, Kawailani voided (5,495.79)$            

    trx# 3273 DRS/LEOFF II created 326,020.29$         

    trx# 3274 FIT TAXES created 376,268.92$         

    trx# 3275 Local 3520 - 1.50% created 31,820.22$           

    trx# 3272 Decision Point - Spectrum created 104,104.26$         

    trx# 3271 Doyle, Justin created 15,149.39$           

    trx# 3270 Ah Quin, Kawailani created 4,263.82$             

        net payroll change (1,817.01)$            

Special AP Warrant

    Voucher # 240706001 Burns Inflatable Jet Boats 15,165.00$           

August 2024

General Fund

Total AP 428,963.70$         

    AP Vouchers

                 Vouchers # 240802001 - 240802062 428,963.70$         

Total Payroll 3,175,491.65$     

   Payroll Vouchers

                 Vouchers # 240804001 - 240804011 442,626.21$         

   Electronic Payroll 2,732,865.44$     

Total Expenditures (AP + Payroll) 3,604,455.35$     

Total BIAS Expenditures (111 - 999)  3,592,131.97$     

Difference 12,323.38$           

    sickleave buyback 12,323.38$           

Capital Fund 302

Total AP

Capital Fund 302 (UTGO 2022 Bonds)

Total AP

                 Vouchers # 240803001 - 240803009 1,662,272.87$     

Agenda Packet Page 14 of 65



Agenda Packet Page 15 of 65



 

 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1057 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SPECIFIC AMBULANCE TRANSPORT ACCOUNTS TO BE 

WRITTEN OFF IN THEIR ENTIRETY. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners East Pierce Fire & Rescue did authorize a schedule of fees for the 

provision of ambulance services, including transport to local hospitals, to be charged within this jurisdiction, by 

Resolution 323 on October 19, 1999; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners hereby has determined that it is necessary to write off particular Advanced 

Life Support (ALS) Transport Accounts. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Fire Commissioners of East Pierce Fire & Rescue that 

the following amounts, listed in table below, be written off in their entirety as recommended by the district’s 

ambulance transport billing agency. 

 

 

 
    

 

Adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of East Pierce Fire & Rescue on August 20, 2024, the 

following commissioners being present and voting: 

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Chair Jon Napier      Commissioner Pat McElligott 

 

_______________________________          

Commissioner Ed Egan                    Commissioner Cynthia Wernet   

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Commissioner Kevin Garling     Commissioner Justin Evans 

 

_______________________________ 

Commissioner Randy Kroum 

 

 

Attest:_________________________ 

 District Secretary 

April-2024 108,391.63$         EMS Levy Funds/COVID Waiver

May-2024 69,325.34$           EMS Levy Funds/COVID Waiver

June-2024 61,885.25$           EMS Levy Funds/COVID Waiver

Total 239,602.22$         

April-2024 -$                        Financial Waiver

May-2024 -$                        Financial Waiver

June-2024 -$                         Financial Waiver 

Total -$                        

TOTAL WRITE-OFFS 239,602.22$         

Agenda Packet Page 16 of 65



 

To:    Board of Fire Commissioners 
 
From:   Phil Herrera, Project Manager 
 
Subject:   Bond Update – August 2024 

 

 

Station 118 

• The general contractor is coming through this month taking care of the last punch list 
items.  There are a number of items yet to repair or replace.  Plus, a lot of landscape 
planting replacements.  

• Fuel tank permit is being issued.  
  

Station 111 

• Admin finishes are underway.   

• Acoustic ceilings and sound insulation install underway. 

• Finish grade sitework continues, curbs and sidewalks continues. 

• Plaza concrete walls are completed. Rock walls and slab work underway. 

• Trim and millwork underway.  

Station 114  

• Finish painting is complete.  

• Polished floors have been completed.  

• Trim and millwork to begin this month. 

• PSE gas line is complete. Water main work is next this month. This will complete the 
conflicts we have been working through.   

• Exterior CMU removal is completed, repair to weather barrier is completed. CMU will 
begin next week.    

Station 117 

• Rough framing is complete.  

• Roof covering is complete, the building is dried in.  

• Electrical, plumbing, and mechanical rough-in is underway. 

• The contractor continues to move at a fast pace. Substantial completion is looking like 
March of 2025.  

 

Agenda Packet Page 17 of 65



Station 112 

• CUP hearing completed. We should have the report this week.  

• Building permit reviews have been addressed and are awaiting approval.  

• The site drawings have been reviewed; final revisions are underway.  

• We are waiting on the CUP to be issued to go out for bid.   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Packet Page 18 of 65



August 2024, Capital Bond Station Photos.  

Station 111    

Front Plaza  

 

   

 

   

 
Interior finishes continue 

Agenda Packet Page 19 of 65



       

                            

  Station 114     
    The CMU has been removed.  Weather barrier is being repaired.  

    

 

   

Agenda Packet Page 20 of 65



Polished interior floors, Interior paint completed.  

      

   

 

                      
Agenda Packet Page 21 of 65



Station 117  

Rough framing complete. Roof is 100% sealed in.    

       

 

   

                    

117 weather barrier application,     this was 114’s application. Big difference  

Agenda Packet Page 22 of 65



Items *Estimate - July 2018 Actual Forecasted Exp.

Engines (6) and Ladder (1) 5,900,000 6,405,741 Complete

Station 118 15,717,441 11,616,265 0

Station 111 21,186,196 19,912,144 6,840,136

Station 114 10,856,061 8,309,860 2,875,140

Station 117 10,096,203 3,907,785 8,682,535

Station 112 13,663,312 1,516,380 11,146,933

Station 124 0 1,380,922 0

Station 116 0 990 0

Project Manager/Admin Asst. 0 1,279,082 107,545

Misc 0 159,433

Total 77,419,213 54,488,602 29,577,655

Bond Total 80,000,000              

Interest YTD 3,381,664                 

Interest Forecasted 2,200,000                 

Expenditures to Date (54,488,602)             

Forecasted Expenditures (29,577,655)             

**End Fund Balance 1,515,408                

* Estimate is based on the capital facilities study update which was completed in 2018. The estimate is not 

the actual budget for each project. The estimate was used to derive the total financial need for the 2018 

bond request. All station projects underwent significant changes in the final design and engineering phase. 

For example, Station 118 and Station 117 were converted to single story stations. Station 111's building 

square footage was increased by nearly 5,000 sq. feet, and the project complexity was for more significant 

than estimated. All building designs were approved by the Board of Fire Commissioners Executive Design 

Committee, and all equipment purchases and construction contracts were/are approved by the Board of Fire 

Commissioners.

**Arbitrage exposure 

not included

Agenda Packet Page 23 of 65



 

To:    Board of Fire Commissioners 
 
From:   Jon Parkinson, Fire Chief 
 
Subject:   Monthly Chief's Report – August 2024 

 

 

Fourth of July 

The finalized 4th of July stats show: 

• 83 total incidents 
o 32 medical 
o 27 vegetation fires 
o 9 residential/commercial fires  

 No working fires 
o 3 water rescues 
o 2 vehicle collisions 

• 16 of these incidents were fireworks-related (or presumed to be) and reported to WSP. 
o 14 fire related  
o 2 injuries 

Fairfax Bridge 

We continue to work through this operational challenge. Chief Gilbert will provide a status 
update at this month’s meeting. 

City Council – Annual Updates 

All council visits have now been completed. The feedback from our cities was very positive. 

June 3rd  - Sumner City Council @ 6PM 
June 10th – Milton City Council @ 7PM 
June 11th – Bonney Lake City Council @ 6PM 
July 9th – Edgewood City Council @ 7PM 
August 13th – South Prairie Town Council @ 7PM 
  
Committee Reminders 

Planning Committee: Friday, August 13th @ 10 AM  

Finance Committee: Request to meet with the Finance Committee the week of September 30th – 
October 4th to review the first draft of the 2025 budget. 

 

Agenda Packet Page 24 of 65



Other activities in the past month 

• Sumner Rotary  
• Bonney Lake Kiwanis  
• Sumner Public Safety Committee 
• Bonney Lake Public Safety 

Agenda Packet Page 25 of 65



 

To:    Board of Fire Commissioners 
 
From:   Kevin Stabenfeldt, Deputy Fire Chief 
                      Matt Gilbert, Deputy Fire Chief  
                     
Subject:   Monthly Deputy Chief's Report – August 2024 

 

 

Operations 

• 2023-01 – Off Probation – Working to get signed off as Driver/Operators 
• 23-A1 – 2nd Quarter of Probation, working on fire checkoffs 
• 23-B2 – 2nd Quarter of Probation, working on fire Checkoffs  
• 24-B4 – Graduation 8/15/24, Finish Wildland Red Card training and Post 

Academy  
• Fairfax Bridge Planning, Joint meeting with Response partners (DNR, Forest 

Service, PCSO, MRNP, PCFM, PCDEM) 
• Several c FRI in Dallas.  Conference hosted by the IAFC. 
• Justin Edwards appointed to Tech Rescue Team 

 
EMS  

• EPFR received confirmation of being awarded AFG grant which will provide financial 
resources to support sending three EMT’s to TFD paramedic program.  (Award is 
approx. $86,000 dollars to cover the cost of registration & backfill) 

• Completed 2024 new instructor certification training for initial ESE training.      
• Completed 3rd Quarter EMS Field scenario training (CVA, Anaphylactic Reaction, 

Trauma, OB-GYN emergencies) 
• Completed 3rd Quarter Peer Support Team training (Addiction and substance abuse in 

the fire service).  
• EPFR mobile integrated health team Completed Session #2 of Advanced Aging and 

planning series (Keep it legal – understanding legal documents). 
 
Logistics 
 

• AC Westland and AC Poe have completed their transition as of August 8th.  
• 2025 logistics budget (DRAFT) completed.  
• Completed install of the HAAS alerting system on additional front-line apparatus. 
• PPE fitting complete for fall recruit class. 
• Upfitting continues for three new staff vehicles.  We are currently waiting for canopies to 

arrive so we can complete the upfitting process and get the vehicles operational.  
 

Fire Prevention/Public Education/PIO 

• Completed 
o (2) Public Education Classes 
o (3) Public Education Events 

Agenda Packet Page 26 of 65



o (6) Smoke Alarm Installs  
o (22) Fire and Life Safety Inspections 
o (3) Fire Investigations  

• Continued collaborations with Pierce County agencies and SS911 to implement 
FDSU (First Due Size Up) throughout the majority of the county.   

• Coordinated several National Night Out events throughout the district.  

 

Other activities in the past month 

• Strategic Planning Committee Meeting 
• HR Committee Meeting  
• PC OPS Chiefs Meetings 
• Fairfax Bridge Impact Planning Meetings  
• National Night Out Events  
• IAFC Fire Rescue International Conference  

Agenda Packet Page 27 of 65



Injury – Medical Leave Report – July 2024 

• To date, a total of 25 employees have experienced extended leave (greater than three 
consecutive shifts); this includes both L&I and Non-L&I leave. 
 

o The average time loss of these employees is estimated at 64.12 calendar days 
 

 

 
o To date, there are 5 L&I claims for time-loss (seen below in orange). 

 

 

638

385

580

Time Loss by Type (calendar days)

Family L&I Self

0

50

100

150

200

250

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25

Time Loss by Employee (calendar days)

Agenda Packet Page 28 of 65



“WHERE COMPASSION AND ACTION MEET .”  
 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

Planning Committee Meeting Notes 

July 19, 2024 @ 1000 hrs.  

C. Wernet (Chair), R. Kroum, J. Napier 

Staff: Chief Parkinson, DC Stabenfeldt, AC Poe, Phil Herrera 

 

1. Station Construction Update 

a. Project Manager Phil Herrera provided the committee with an update on construction of 

Station 114.  Exterior concrete masonry units (CMU blocks) have been removed to reveal 

the vapor barrier, which has been inspected so that repairs may continue.  Delays caused 

by rework such as this and other contractor coordination problems have been significant.  

Planning Committee is recommending that our project manager negotiate with the 

contractor regarding a project completion date and a fair reimbursement for their costs 

associated with project delays.  We will seek a partial payment contingent on successful 

completion of the project by a new agreed-upon extended date. 

b. The committee discussed the benefits of installing a fuel pump station at the new Station 

111.  Although there was not enough space for a fueling station at the beginning of the 

project, it appears now that a facility may be located on site.  Planning Committee 

recommends that we allocate project contingency funding to provide for an engineered 

design and essential site work for utilities necessary before asphalt is laid.  The additional 

installation of a fuel station may follow only after design, a study of permitting 

requirements, and an evaluation of project budget are completed. 

c. The committee discussed the design engineer’s, RFM’s, request for additional payment 

associated with Station 111 project delays.  These fees are in accordance with their 

contract.  We are seeking closure of this issue and final settlement of their fees. 

2. Assistant Project Manager 

a. The discussion about hiring an assistant project manager is on hold for a future 

committee meeting pending study and a proposal prepared by the chief and his staff.   

 

Next Meeting:  

• Friday, September 13th @ 1000 (Station 111, Training Room) 

Agenda Packet Page 29 of 65



“WHERE COMPASSION AND ACTION MEET .”  
 

 

 

 

 

HR Committee Agenda 

August 5, 2024 @ 1000 hrs. 

Commissioners: E. Egan (Chair), R. Kroum, P. McElligott 

Staff: Chief Parkinson, DC Stabenfeldt, DC Gilbert, AC Poe, HRM Lynch 

 

 

1. Call to Order  

 

2. Non-Uniformed Wage Study 

HRM Lynch provided a presentation reviewing the non-uniformed wage and benefit analysis. Based 

on the analysis, recommendations were made regarding wage adjustments and COLA, deferred 

compensation adjustments, and longevity adjustments. The committee was supportive of the 

recommendation. The finance committee will be the next to review the recommendations in the draft 

budget.  

 

3. 2nd Mechanic Hiring 

The committee reviewed a request to hire a second mechanic, originally planned for 2025, to be 

hired as soon as possible. We are seeing turnaround times grow as we outsource repairs, and as our 

fleet continues to age and go out of warranty, the responsibility for the repairs defaults to EPFR vs. 

Hughes Fire. The committee was supportive of this request. The Board will review the request at the 

August meeting. 

 

4. Project Manager Contract 

The committee reviewed the current employment agreement with Project Manager Phil Herrera, 

which expires on 8/31/24. It was recommended that the existing agreement be extended through 

12/31/25 and a wage adjustment of 3.8% be made to his salary effective 1/1/2025. The Board will 

review the request at the August meeting. 

 

5. Employee Survey 

The committee was briefed on the common themes seen in the employee survey. The survey will be 

forwarded to the Board once the staff receives a final draft.  

 

6. Collective Bargaining Agreement 

The committee was briefed on the status of negotiations. The Board will be briefed in an executive 

session in August as needed. 

 

7. Adjourn  

Agenda Packet Page 30 of 65



 

   

Summary:  
This transfer is to be transferred to the General Fund to cover the expenditures for Capital Purchases 
approved by the Board for FY2024. 

 

 
Fiscal Impact:    

 

  
Board Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Resolution 1058 Transfer of funds from the Reserve to General Fund 

Recommendation from Staff:  

Recommendation from Committee:  

Recommended Action/Motion: I move to approve Resolution 1058 to transfer funds 
from the Reserve Fund to the General Fund in the 
amount of $1,110,229. 

Presenter:   Finance Manager M. Hollon 

Attachments:  Resolution 1058 and Detail Spreadsheet 

Agenda Packet Page 31 of 65



 

 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1058 
 

A RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS BETWEEN FUND ACCOUNTS 

 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to transfer funds in the amount of $1,110,229 from the Reserve 

Fund to the General Fund for the expenditures of Capital Purchases accruing in the FY2024 

Budget; and 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of East 

Pierce Fire & Rescue that Pierce County Budget and Finance is directed to transfer these funds  

August 21, 2024 as follows: 

 

Transfer based on above request to transfer between funds will be: 

 

Reserve Fund (690-022) Transfer Out $1,110,229 

        General Fund (686-022) Transfer In $1,110,229 

  

  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of August 2024, the following commissioners being 

present and voting: 

 
 
 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Chair Jon Napier     Commissioner Pat McElligott 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner Justin Evans    Commissioner Cynthia Wernet 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner Kevin Garling    Commissioner Ed Egan 

 

_______________________________ 

Commissioner Randy Kroum 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

District Secretary 

Agenda Packet Page 32 of 65



Ca
pi

ta
l P

ur
ch

as
es

 fo
r 

20
23

Pu
rc

ha
se

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
12

/2
02

3
Bu

dg
et

ed
 

Tr
an

sf
er

re
d

Co
m

pl
et

io
n

PP
V 

Fa
n

5,
15

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
Ca

rr
y 

O
ve

r
N

ew
 E

ng
in

es
 (2

) 2
02

2
2,

19
8,

14
4

$ 
   

  
Ca

rr
y 

O
ve

r
N

ew
 E

ng
in

es
 (2

) 2
02

3
2,

31
2,

70
4

$ 
   

  
Ca

rr
y 

O
ve

r
St

at
io

n 
12

4 
Re

no
va

tio
n

27
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

10
9,

41
5

$ 
   

  
Pa

rt
ia

l
3 

M
ed

ic
 U

ni
ts

 (2
nd

 S
et

)
$1

,0
21

,2
00

41
,6

68
$ 

   
   

 
Pa

rt
ia

l

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ur
ch

as
es

 fo
r 

20
24

Pu
rc

ha
se

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
Bu

dg
et

ed
 

Tr
an

sf
er

re
d

Co
m

pl
et

io
n

Ex
pe

nd
it

ur
es

 
20

24

To
ta

l 
Ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
 

fo
r 

Pu
rc

ha
se

O
ve

r 
/ 

U
nd

er
 

Bu
dg

et

3 
M

ed
ic

 U
ni

ts
 

1,
02

1,
20

0
$ 

   
  

90
0,

86
7

Co
m

pl
et

e
90

0,
86

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

94
2,

53
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
78

,6
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
St

at
io

n 
12

4 
Re

no
va

tio
n

27
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

16
5,

58
5

Co
m

pl
et

e
$1

72
,7

98
$2

82
,2

13
-$

7,
21

3
A

pp
lie

d 
to

 G
L

Zo
di

ac
 B

oa
t

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

33
,8

98
$ 

   
   

 
Co

m
pl

et
e

33
,8

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

33
,8

98
$ 

   
   

   
   

6,
10

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Fu

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
tio

n 
11

6
15

,4
50

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

87
9

$ 
   

   
   

Co
m

pl
et

e
$9

,8
79

9,
87

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
5,

57
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

To
ta

ls
1,

35
1,

65
0

$ 
   

  
1,

11
0,

22
9

$ 
 1,

26
1,

31
2

$ 
   

 

Agenda Packet Page 33 of 65



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
 

 

 

   

Summary:  

Staff recommends the surplus of the real property, house and garage structures only, located on 

the property at 20606 120th St E, Bonney Lake, where the new Station 112 will be constructed. 

The house and garage structures and $1 will be exchanged for the purchase of a portion of the 

neighboring property at 12218 207th Ave East, Bonney Lake, staff recommends moving 

forward with the sale of the house and garage.  
 

Legal tax description of property to by aquired: 

A STRIP OF LAND LYING WITHIN LOT 3 OF THE SHORT PLAT RECORDED UNDER 

PIERCE COUNTY AUDITOR’S RECORDING NUMBER 8401030143, BEING WITHIN 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER SECTION OF  

SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE WILLAMETTE 

MERIDIAN, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS: 

THE NORTHERLY 8.00 FEET OF THE WESTERLY 188.00 FEET OF SAID LOT 3. 

CONTAINING AN AREA OF 1504 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 

 

Fiscal Impact:   N/A 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Resolution 1059 -Station 112 House and Garage Surplus 

Recommendation from Staff: Approve 

Recommendation from Committee: Approve  

Recommended Action/Motion: Move to approve Resolution 1059, the surplus of the 

real property (house and garage structures only) 

located at 20606 120th Street East, Bonney Lake, 

WA.  The District will purchase approximately 1504 

square feet of real property located at 12116 207th 

Avenue East, Bonney Lake, WA for $1 in addition to 

the surplused real property (house and garage 

structures only). 

Presenter:   Chief Parkinson 

Attachments:  Resolution 1059 

Agenda Packet Page 34 of 65



 

 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1059 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF EAST PIERCE FIRE 

AND RESCUE DECLARING REAL PROPERTY SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE 

DISTRICT AND AUTHORIZING DISPOSAL 

 

WHEREAS, fire protection districts are possessed of the lawful authority to dispose of real and 

personal property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board has enumerated the following item as being surplus to the needs of the 

District: 

The House and garage located at 20606 120th Street East, Bonney Lake, WA 98391 

(collectively the “House”). 

The House has become obsolete and has no further value to furthering the mission of the District. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:   

1. The House is hereby declared surplus to the needs of the District and authorized for 

disposal, sale, donation, or other disposition. 

2. The House may be sold, exchanged or donated without any warranty whatsoever, AS 

IS, and with all faults. Any monies derived will be deposited into the General Reserve 

Fund. 

3. If a buyer cannot be found, if feasible, the House may be donated to a public agency 

or local non-profit, unless required by statute to be destroyed, without any warranty 

whatsoever, AS IS, and with all faults. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of August 2024 by the Board of Fire Commissioners 

of East Pierce Fire and Rescue  

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Chair Jon Napier      Commissioner Pat McElligott 

 

_______________________________          

Commissioner Ed Egan                    Commissioner Cynthia Wernet   

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Commissioner Kevin Garling     Commissioner Justin Evans 

 

_______________________________ 

Commissioner Randy Kroum 

 

 

Attest:_________________________ 

 District Secretary 

Agenda Packet Page 35 of 65



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 
 

 
 

 

 

   

Summary:  

Staff recommends that we surplus three Stryker Power Loads & three Power Pro XT Gurney’s 
on attached Appendix A.  The three Power Loads & Power Pro XT Gurney’s we are 
requesting to surplus no longer are of a use to us.  All the items utilize older technology or 
have been replaced with new equipment.  These assets are installed on medic unit surpluses 
from last month.   We recommend the equipment listed on (Appendix A) be sold, donated or 
recycled at the discretion of the Fire Chief. 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:   Click or tap here to enter text. 

 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Resolution 1060 - Surplus EMS Equipment 

Recommendation from Staff:  Approve 

Recommendation from Committee: N/A 

Recommended Action/Motion: Move to approve Resolution 1060 the surplus of 3 

Stryker Power Loads & 3 Power Pro XT Gurney’s to 

be sold at auction, donated, or recycled at the 

discretion of the Fire Chief.  

Presenter:   Assistant Chief Jeff Moore 

Attachments:  Appendix A 

Agenda Packet Page 36 of 65



 

 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1060 

 

A Resolution to Surplus EMS Equipment 

 
 

WHEREAS, EMS equipment, as listed in Appendix A, owned by East Pierce Fire & Rescue has been 

deemed past its useful life due to outdated technology and is no longer of use to the District; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of East Pierce Fire & 

Rescue that EMS equipment, as listed in Appendix A; is hereby declared surplus to the needs of the 

District and will be disposed of, donated, sold, or recycled at the discretion of the Fire Chief. 

  

ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of East Pierce Fire & Rescue on August 

20, 2024, the following commissioners being present and voting: 

 

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Chair Jon Napier      Commissioner Pat McElligott 

 

 

_______________________________          

Commissioner Randy Kroum     Commissioner Kevin Garling 

 

 

_______________________________    ______________________________ 

Commissioner Ed Egan      Commissioner Justin Evans 

 

 

_______________________________     

Commissioner Cynthia Wernet        

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

District Secretary 

Agenda Packet Page 37 of 65



Resolution 1060 Appendix A

Type Brand Model Serial Number Disposition Asset

Gurney Stryker Power Pro XT 160140373 obsolete 11752

Gurney Stryker Power Po XT 160140374 obsolete 11782

Gurney Stryker Power Pro XT 150740282 obsolete 11757

Power Load Styker Power Load 160140802 obsolete none

Power Load Stryker Power Load 170140467 obsolete 11693

Power Load Styker Power Load 170140467 obsolete 11696

Agenda Packet Page 38 of 65



 

   

Summary:  
Charges from PSE for equipment and services for the capital projects were estimated.  Actual costs  
were much lower, PSE issued a refund check in the amount of $6,536.  Funds were originally charged to 
the Capital Fund and the refund must be applied back to the Capital Fund. 

 

 

 
Fiscal Impact:    

 

  
Board Meeting 

Agenda Item Summary 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Resolution 1061 Transfer of funds from the General to Capital Fund 

Recommendation from Staff: Approve transfer from General to Capital Fund 

Recommendation from Committee:  

Recommended Action/Motion: I move to approve Resolution 1061 to transfer funds 
from the General Fund to the Capital Fund in the 
amount of $6,536. 

Presenter:   Finance Manager M. Hollon 

Attachments:  Resolution 1061 

Agenda Packet Page 39 of 65



 

 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1061 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS BETWEEN FUND ACCOUNTS 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board wishes to transfer funds in amount of $6,536 from the General 

Fund to the Capital Fund due to a capital projects refund from PSE; and 

 

 WHEREAS, charges from PSE were an estimate and actual costs were much lower, PSE 

issued a refund check in the amount of $6,536.  Funds were originally charged to the Capital 

Fund and the refund must be applied back to the Capital Fund; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of East 

Pierce Fire and Rescue that Pierce County Budget and Finance is directed to transfer these funds 

August 21, 2024, as follows: 

 

         

        General Fund (686-022) Transfer Out $6,536 

        Capital Fund  (687-022) Transfer In $6,536 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of August 2024, the following commissioners being 

present and voting: 

 

 
 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Chair Jon Napier     Commissioner Pat McElligott 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner Justin Evans    Commissioner Cynthia Wernet 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Commissioner Kevin Garling    Commissioner Ed Egan 

 

_______________________________ 

Commissioner Randy Kroum 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

District Secretary 
 

Agenda Packet Page 40 of 65



 

   

Summary:  
After review by the HR Committee, it is recommended that the existing employment agreement 
with Phil Herrera be extended through 12/31/25 (currently expires 8/31/24) with a wage adjustment 
increase of 3.8% effective 1/1/2025. 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:   Funded via the Capital Fund 

 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Project Manager Employment Agreement 

Recommendation from Staff: Approve 

Recommendation from Committee: Approve – HR Committee 

Recommended Action/Motion: Move to authorize the Board Chair to sign the 

employment agreement extension with Phil Herrera 

for the position of project manager. 

Presenter:   Chief Parkinson 

Attachments:  Agreement Extension MOU 

Agenda Packet Page 41 of 65



 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BY AND BETWEEN 

EAST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

AND 

PROJECT MANAGER PHIL HERRERA 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding sets forth a supplemental employment agreement between EAST 

PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE, a political subdivision of the State of Washington, and Project Manager Phil 

Herrera to be approved by action of the Board of Commissioners and by Project Manager Phil Herrera. 

 

Whereas, the Project Manager is under a two-year employment agreement with wages and benefits 

listed in that agreement, and 

 

Whereas, Board of Commissioners have reviewed and recommends the following be granted to the 

Project Manager based on competitive wage rates, and 

 

Whereas, additional language has been presented and reviewed by both parties. 

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY AGREED: 

 

A. It is agreed to amend the annual salary for January 2025 through December 2025 from a 

monthly base salary of $15,721 to a monthly base salary of $16,319. Amending Section 3, Item 

3.1.1 as follows: 

3.1.1 An annual salary of $169,181 per year for the first year of this agreement, which equates to a 
monthly base salary of $14,099 from September 2022 through August 2023. 

 
 Annual salary for the second year of this agreement shall be $188,652 which equates to a 

monthly base salary of $15,721 from September 2023 through December 2024. 
  
 Annual salary for January 2025 through December 2025 shall be $195,828 which equates to a 

monthly base salary of $16,319 from January 2025 through December 2025. 
 

Salary is payable on the last working day of each month in which such services are performed, 
consistent with common payroll practices for the District.  
 

B. It is agreed to amend the Term of Agreement to be extended from a 2 year contract to extend 

through December 31, 2025.  This amended agreement shall be effective September 1, 2024 to 

December 31, 2025. Amending Section 11 as follows: 

11.1 This agreement shall be effective September 1, 2022, and shall be in full force and effect until 
December 31, 2025, unless sooner terminated pursuant to Sections 7 or 8 above.  In the event 
this agreement terminates by expiration of its term, no severance shall be due.      

 

Agenda Packet Page 42 of 65



Dated this 20th day of August 2024. 

Project Manager East Pierce Fire & Rescue 

______________________ __________________________ 

Phil Herrera Board Chair, Jon Napier   

Agenda Packet Page 43 of 65



 

   

Summary:  
The HR Committee reviewed a request to hire a second mechanic in 2024. Staff had made a 
presentation to the Board in December 2023 explaining the rationale and need for an additional 
mechanic. The original intent was to request this position as part of the 2025 budget. Due to 
increased repair times in outsourcing and an increase in repairs as our fleet ages and goes out of 
warranty, staff believes it is prudent to onboard this employee as soon as possible.  
 
This is not a budgeted position in 2024. The Board would approve the final budget amendment 
in December 2024 if the position is approved. 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:   Dependent on the actual start date. Estimate is 

less than $50,000 for a 9/1 start date. This 
amount will decrease as the date gets pushed 
out. 

 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: 2nd Mechanic – Request to hire in 2024. 

Recommendation from Staff: Approve 

Recommendation from Committee: Approve – HR Committee 

Recommended Action/Motion: Move to authorize the fire chief to move forward 

with hiring a second mechanic in 2024 

Presenter:   Chief Parkinson & AC Poe 

Attachments:  None 

Agenda Packet Page 44 of 65



 

   

Summary:  
AC Moore will give a presentation to the board regarding the Tempus Heart Monitors, which were 
purchased in early 2022. Since receiving the monitors, we have faced several challenges that have 
required “workarounds” to meet the needs of our patients and EMS providers. The monitors have 
become a large frustration for our employees, which was seen in the most recent employee survey.  
 
AC Moore will review the history of this purchase, the operational challenges we have 
addressed, and what we see as our next steps with the vendor.  
 
No action is requested at this time. 
 

 
Fiscal Impact:   N/A 

 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Tempus Heart Monitors 

Recommendation from Staff: Information Only 

Recommendation from Committee: N/A 

Recommended Action/Motion: No Action Requested 

Presenter:   AC Moore 

Attachments:  None 

Agenda Packet Page 45 of 65



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Summary: 

Per Resolution 1059 at the August 20th, 2024 regular Board meeting, the Board surplused the 

house and garage located on the property at 20606 120th St E, Bonney Lake, where the new 

Station 112 will be constructed.  The District will purchase a portion of the neighboring property

at 12218 207th Ave East, Bonney Lake, for $1 in addition to the surplused real property (house 

and garage structures only).  Staff recommends moving forward with the exchange.  

Legal tax description of property to by aquired: 

A STRIP OF LAND LYING WITHIN LOT 3 OF THE SHORT PLAT RECORDED UNDER 

PIERCE COUNTY AUDITOR’S RECORDING NUMBER 8401030143, BEING WITHIN 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER SECTION OF  

SECTION 10, TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE WILLAMETTE 

MERIDIAN, PIERCE COUNTY, WASHINGTON, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 

AS FOLLOWS: 

THE NORTHERLY 8.00 FEET OF THE WESTERLY 188.00 FEET OF SAID LOT 3. 

CONTAINING AN AREA OF 1504 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS. 

Fiscal Impact:  N/A 

Meeting Date: August 20, 2024 

Title: Sale of Station 112 House and Garage 

Recommendation from Staff: Approve 

Recommendation from Committee: N/A 

Recommended Action/Motion: Move to authorize the Fire Chief to execute and sign 

the documents pertaining to the purchase and sale 

agreement for the house and garage located at 20606 

120th Street East, Bonney Lake, WA.  The District 

will purchase approximately 1504 square feet of real 

property located at 12116 207th Avenue East, Bonney 

Lake, WA for $1 in addition to the surplused real 

property (house and garage structures only). 

Presenter:  Chief Parkinson 

Attachments: Draft Purchase and Sale Agreement 

Agenda Packet Page 46 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 47 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 48 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 49 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 50 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 51 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 52 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 53 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 54 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 55 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 56 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 57 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 58 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 59 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 60 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 61 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 62 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 63 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 64 of 65



DRAFT

Agenda Packet Page 65 of 65


	3 - 08R-2024-August Regular
	4a - 2024-07-July 16 Regular - DRAFT
	4b - 07 July 2024 Treasurer's Report
	4c1 - Transmittal
	4c2 - Transmittal 7-23-2024
	4c3 - Grid
	4di - Financial Waiver 132855695
	4e - 1057-2008-2024 Ambulance Transport Write-offs 2nd Qtr. 2024
	7a1 - August 2024 - Bond Update  -
	7a2 -August 2024 Bond Photos
	7a3 - Bond Forecast (behind pictures)
	8a -August 2024 - Fire Chief's Report
	8b - DC Report August 2024 KS
	8c - Injury - Medical Leave Report - July 2024 Summary
	9a - Planning Committee Notes 2024.07.19
	9c - HR Committee Minutes
	10a1 - Transfer from Reserve to GL 8.20.2024
	10a2 - 1058-2008-2024 Transfer of Funds from Reserve to GL
	10a3 - Transfer Detail Report
	2024 report (6 month) 

	10b1 - Station 112 House Surplus Agenda Summary
	10b2 - 1059- 2008-2024 Surplus House on Station 112 Property
	10c1 - Agenda Summary August 2024
	10c2 - 1060-2008-2024 Surplus EMS Equipment
	10c3 - 2024 EMS Surplus Appendix A
	10d1 - Agenda Summary for Transfer of funds 8.20.24
	10d2 - 1061-2008-2024 Transfer of Funds from General Fund to Capital Fund -Refund
	11a1 - Agenda Summary - Project Manager Contract
	11a2 - MOU 2024 Herrera
	11b - Agenda Summary - Mechanic
	11c - Agenda Summary - Heart Rate Monitors
	11d1 - Station 112 House Trade Agenda Summary
	11d2 - Draft purchase and sale agreement station 112
	17a - AP General
	17b - AP Capital



